
Historic and/or Architectural Review  Page 1 of 4 

City of Cortland – January 9, 2012 

Historic and/or Architectural Advisory Board 
City of Cortland 
January 9, 2012 
 
A regular meeting of the Historic District Commission was held on January 9, 2012 at 8:00 
a.m. in the Mayor’s Conference Room at City Hall.   
 
Present: Chair Kline, Comm. Delaney, Dineen and Kane 
 
Staff Present: Zoning Officer Bruce Weber, Deputy Chief Knickerbocker and Cheryl 

Massmann, Deputy City Clerk 
 
Item No. 2 – Minutes – December 12, 2011 
 
Motion:  Comm. Dineen 
Seconded:  Comm. Kane 
 
  Motion passed. 
 
Item No. 1 – 117 Main St. – (Cook)(CB) – Signage 
 
Eric Cook was present.  His proposal is to replace two (2) signs at this location.  One (1) is 
the façade sign.  He will be using the same size oval shape sign which is presently on the 
building, just changing the colors and also replacing the panels on the backlit two (2) faced 
pole sign.  He has painted the façade mustard and the façade sign will be the same 
mustard color outlined in black, with black lettering and will have a yellow globe with the 
continents painted in with black.   He noted that he did not know that the building was in 
the Historic District and the signs are already made.  He stated that the building owner, 
John Scanlon, did not inform him that this was the case and that all signage and façade 
proposals had to be approved by the Historic Commission.   
 
Chair Kline noted that there will be gooseneck lighting illuminating the façade sign.  She 
further explained that in 2003, the Historic Board was not an official board, but a 
committee, that made recommendations to the Planning Commission prior to their making 
their final decision on an application.  She stated that the Historic Committee 
recommended no back lighting.  She found this out by contacting a former Historic 
committee member, as no minutes were taken of those committee meetings.  She explained 
that she also reviewed the Planning Commission minutes of that time and their decision on 
the Starr Bistro application.  Chair Kline gave the history of the Historic Committee and 
the process the Starr Bistro application followed, as well as the Historic Committees’ 
recommendation.  The Planning Commission minutes reflect that their final decision was to 
go with the Historic Committee’s recommendation on sign colors, but to approve back 
lighting of the pole sign.   



Historic and/or Architectural Review  Page 2 of 4 

City of Cortland – January 9, 2012 

 
Chair Kline noted that Mr. Cook’s signs are made.  It was noted that the façade sign was 
about five (5) feet wide with the colors being black, mustard and with the yellow globe.  
She noted that the pole sign proposal is the same design as the façade sign using the black 
lettering and yellow globe on a white plastic background.  She explained that Mr. Cook 
wants the pole sign to be lit to show that his restaurant is open.  Mr. Cook explained that 
if the sign is not lit, the place will look closed and he will lose business. 
 
Chair Kline asked if he would perhaps consider lighting the pole sign another way, such as 
using ground lighting aimed up or channel lighting.  Comm. Dineen asked if the Starr Bistro 
sign was lit.  Mr. Cook stated that it had been lit.  Chair Kline noted that the Historic 
Committee had decided that back lighting should not be allowed, but the Planning 
Commission approved it being lit because they didn’t receive all of the information from 
the Historic Committee regarding their full decision. 
 
Comm. Delaney stated that she had no problem with the design.  Comm. Dineen felt that 
the yellow in the globe was very bright.  Eric Cook stated that they had approved the 
yellow banana in the Bernard’s sign was brighter than what he was proposing.  Chair Kline 
was concerned regarding the fact that no color chip had been submitted; noting that she 
had requested that Mr. Cook present one and this Commission always based their decisions 
on actual color chips.  Eric Cook left the meeting to get the color chart. 
 
Chair Kline noted that while the Commission was waiting for his return, she wanted the 
Commission to know that a Japanese restaurant is coming in to Nordic Sports.  She stated 
that she has contacted them and offered to help them with their signage proposal.  She 
noted that they plan to open in about three (3) months. 
 
Chair Kline stated that she has not heard anything further from Sugar Mountain regarding 
their signage and no sign has gone up. 
 
Zoning Officer Weber stated that he has talked with the business at 15 Central Avenue 
regarding signage.  He noted that what was wanted some changes and was a bit larger than 
what was allowed and they would be coming back before this commission. 
 
Chair Kline updated the Commission regarding Mando Books and the fact that the owner 
has not moved their neon sign back and to the other window.  She noted that Tom 
Terwilliger refused to move his sign when his application was denied.   
 
Chair Kline noted that this Commission had composed a letter and had sent it to all 
property owners in the Historic District notifying them that their building was in the 
Historic District and that there were guidelines that had to be followed, noting that they 
or their tenants had to come before this Commission before new signs or building façade 
changes could be made. 
 



Historic and/or Architectural Review  Page 3 of 4 

City of Cortland – January 9, 2012 

Eric Cook returned with the color chart showing FDC #025 Sunflower Yellow was used for 
the globe graphic on both of his signs.  He noted that the pole sign is six feet two inches 
(6’ 2”) by twelve (12) feet with a three and a half (3 ½) foot diameter globe.  Comm. Kane 
noted that the design of the signs was okay.  Chair Kline asked for more thoughts on the 
issue of a back lit sign.  Comm. Kane asked if it would be lit twenty-four (24) hours a day.  
Mr. Cook stated that it would be lit from dark until 11:00 PM.  Mr. Cook stated that if the 
pole sign was not lit, customers would feel that he wasn’t open.  He stated that the façade 
sign was only five (5) foot wide; as he had hauled it in his pick up truck   He stated that it 
will hurt his business if the sign is not on.  He further stated that the pole sign was made 
as a backlit sign.  He felt that trying to do something else was unreasonable and would be 
hideous.  Chair Kline stated that this Commission is responsible to others who have come to 
this Commission before him and have also been denied.  Mr. Cook asked why this pole sign 
wasn’t grandfathered as a backlit, as it had been there for a very long time. 
 
Comm. Dineen noted that backlighting of this sign was allowed by another City Board in the 
past and he was more concerned with the yellow.  Comm. Delaney reminded everyone that 
the signs are already done.  Chair Kline noted that was what hurt, that the landlord did not 
inform the tenant and the signs are done. 
 
Comm. Delaney noted that this put this Commission in a difficult position.  Chair Kline 
suggested that Mr. Cook could place the lighting in the planter below the pole sign.  Mr. 
Cook stated that he couldn’t do that as it soon would be destroyed by the kids.  Mr. Cook 
asked why this sign wasn’t grandfathered in as the sign had been up for a long time and it 
was a white background sign with black lettering and not a red sign.  There was continuing 
discussion regarding existing versus new. 
 
Comm. Delaney felt that the Commission should allow the pole sign to be lit since it’s 
already made and already had been approved by another Board years ago.  Comms. Kane 
and Dineen agreed as well. 
 
A motion was made to approve the sign proposal as presented, contingent that the pole 
sign only be lit from dusk to closing. 
 
Motion:   Comm. Dineen 
Seconded:   Comm. Delaney 
 
    Motion passed.  (Chair Kline – opposed) 
 
Mr. Cook complained that building owners must inform renters and that something needs 
to be put in place to assure that they notify their renters.  Chair Kline stated that a letter 
had been sent to the building owners on April 2010 alerting them to their responsibility.  
She also wondered if the newspaper would put this information in an article. (Cortland 
Standard was present at this meeting) 
 



Historic and/or Architectural Review  Page 4 of 4 

City of Cortland – January 9, 2012 

Adjournment 
 
Motion:   Comm. Dineen 
Seconded:   Comm. Delaney 
 
    Motion passed. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Linda Kline, Chairperson 
 


